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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Easy Trip Planners Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Easy Trip Planners Limited
("the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given teo us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducied our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in
accordance with these reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 49 in the Standalone Financial Statements, which describes the possible
effect of uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Company's financial performance as
assessed by the management. Our copinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the standalone financial statements section of cur report, including in relation to these
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matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The resulis
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition from air passage (Refer Note 25 to the standalone financial
statements)

The Company derives its revenue | Our audit procedures included, amongst others the

mainly from agency commission on | following:

sale of airline tickets. e We obtained an understanding of the systems,
processes and controls implemented by the

Revenue from the sale of airline tickets Company for recording revenue from air passage,

is recognized on a net commission evaluated the design and fested the operating

basis and revenue from incentives and effectiveness of key controls.

fees is recognized on earned basis net | « On a sample basis, we have traced the travel

of discounts given fto customers. details for which income is recognised to the

Incentives from airlines are recognized statements provided by the airlines to evaluate

as revenue when the performance the incidence of travel by the customers.

obligations under the incentive | ¢ On a sample basis, tested the amount of

schemes are achieved/ expected to be incentives accrued at the year end on the basis of

achieved during the year. percentages (as prescribed by various airlines)
applied on travel/ flown data received from

We identified revenue recognition from airlines. The amount of accrued incentives is also

air ticketing relating to incentives as a adjusted with the data affirmed by airlines, to the

key audit matter because revenue is extent received.

one of the Company's key performance | « Assessed adequacy of disclosures in the

indicators. Also, there is an inherent standalone financial statements.

risk that revenue could be recorded at

incorrect amount since estimation of

incentives is dependent upon various

inputs such as incidence of travel by

customers, achievement of sale/ flown

targets and affirmation of relevant

data, as provided by the airlines. .

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fergery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal conirol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
cf such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures macde by management.
» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
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going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accountas required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference io these
standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;
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(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the standalone financial
statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

b)

c)

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the
date of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Reagistration Number: 101049W/E300004

pér Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 22094941AJ0OLSN1515
Place of Signature: New Deihi

Date: May 25, 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
Re: Easy Trip Planners Limited (*The Company’™)

iii.

@)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(@

(b)

(@

()

(c)

(d)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets,

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year ended March 31, 2022,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. As represented by
the Company, no quarterly returns/statements are required to be filed by the Company with
such banks.

During the year the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. During the year the Company has provided loans to Companies as follows:

Loans

Particulars (Amount in Mn)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Subsidiaries 49.80
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases _ -
- Subsidiaries 49.80

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees and provided
security to companies, firms, Limited Liabifity Partnerships or any other parties. The terms
and conditions of the loans granted to Companies are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has granted loan(s) during the year to Companies are repayable on demand.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety
days.
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vi.

vii.

V7

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of locan granted to companies which had fallen
due during the year.

() Asdisclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, the Company has granted loans or advances
in the nature of loans, repayable on demand to Companies. Of these following are the details
of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to related parties
as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars Related Parties
(Amount in Mn)
Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans 49,80
- Repayable on demand 49.80
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment *
Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total loans 100%

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us, provisions of section
186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given and investments made have
been complied with by the Company. The provisions of section 185 in respect of loans to directors
including entities in which they are interested is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities and there have been delays in large number of cases of provident fund and there
are slight delays is in case of equalization levy, tax deducted at source , Goods and service tax
and Employees' state insurance. The provisions relating to sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

kigws of el fiabire F— Period to which | Forum where

statute of the dues (Rs Millions) the amount | the _dlspute is
reiates pending
Income tax Act, |, . —— . .. | AY.2012-13 to Commissioner of
Income tax demand 356.98*" Income-tax

1961 AY.2017-18

(Appeals) |
Commissioner of
Income tax demand 7.22 | AY. 2020-21 Income-tax
(Appeals)

Income tax Act,
1961

** The Company has deposited Rs. 15.60 miilion undéi’ protest.
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viii.

xi.

xii.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the reguirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

@)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

()]

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(a)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and
term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Ceniral Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not appiicable to the
Company.
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Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvii.

Xviii.

Xix.

WX

According to the information and explanation given by management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(@ The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(@) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi}a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance
with second proviso te sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disciosed
in note 22(b) to the financial statements,



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountanis

(b) All amounis that are unspent under section (5) of section 135 of Companies Act, pursuant to
any ongeing project, has been contributed to a Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary, which in turn
has transferred this amount to a special account in compliance of with provisions of sub section

(6) of section 135 of the said Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 22 (b) to the financial
statements.

For S5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
L
W

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 22094241 AJOLSN1515

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent auditor's report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Easy Trip Planners Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Easy Trip Planners Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safequarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
fo the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contrel based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference
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to Standalone ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

L5

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 22094941 AJOLSN1515

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Standulone Balnnee Sheet as at March 31, 2022
CIN - La3090DE2008PLCT 79041

(INR in Millions)

Particulars Notes Ap it ik
Niureh 31, 2022 NMarch 31, 2021
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(0) Property, plaot and equipment 3 80,78 75.58
(b) tvestment properties + 2305 2313
(&) Intangible nssets 5 316 .45
() Tmangible assets under development 5 - 333
() Fitancial assets
(i) vestments 8 200,45 15.95
(i) Other financial assets 9 1,230.35 137.65
(1) Delerred tox psset (net) 24 41,02 3287
(g2) Other non-current assels i 4.83 1.12
Total non-current assets 1,583.64 29108
IL Currenl assels
(a1) Financial assets
(1) Investmenis T 10.30 10.15
(11} Trade receivables 11 509,82 293.91
(11} Cash and cash equivalents 12 276.46 743.65
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above 13 958,41 1.539.15
(v} Loans 0 5111 418
(i) Other finameial nssets 9 138.13 11361
(lr) Other current assels 10 1,188.59 B13.606
Total current assets 3,132.82 3.518.32
Total Assets (1-+11) 4,716,406 3.80930
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Tl EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 14 434.58 217.29
(b} Other equity
(i) Retained earnings 15 1,963.11 1.4306.53
2,397.69 1.653.82
LIABILITIES
IV, Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Cther financial habilities 17 .63 2,53
(b} Contraet liabilin 19 - 21244
(e} Long lerm provisions 20 26.90 18.27
Total non-current linbilitics 27.53 233.24
V. Current linbilities
ta) Financial linbilities
(i) Trade payabiles 16
Total outstanding dues of micro entetprises and sniall CIlemprises: 0.51 0,15
Totl outstanding, dues of ereditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises 321.85 237.87
() Other Fnameial Habiliics 17 1,098.71 1.076.35
{111) Borrowing 18 396.90 -
(b} Conteact liability 19 269.61 307.00
() Provisions 20 14.29 490
(cl) Other curvent lialilities 21 9430 | (15450
(e) Linhilities for current tax (nef) 23 95,07 125,57
Tatal current linbilitics 2,291.24 1.922.33
Total Liabilities 2,318.77 2,155.57
Total Equity and Linbilities (IIHIV4V) 4,716.46 3.809.30
Summary of sigmfeant acconnting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmneinl statements
As per our report of even date

For 5.1 Batliboi & Agsociates LLP
Chartered Acconmtints

TCAL livm regastration number: 010498/ E300004

N

par Y ogesh Midha
Purmes
Membership No.. (9494 |

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Basy Trip Planners Limite

N f A

I
‘ - B W‘ ’B‘ﬂl.:llti Piutie
" Director
MM 03136309
Place: New Dulhi
Date: May 25, EUZJI

Nishafit Pite
Direttor

DIN: 02172265
Mace. New Delli
Date: May 25, 2022

M
P

Ashish Kuniar Bansal
Chiel Financiat Officer

Pritankh {}):ni
Company Seeretury
Membership No: AS0412
PMlice: New Delh

Date: May 25, 2022

Place: New Delhi
Bate. Muy 25, 2022



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
CIN - L63090D1L2008PLC179041

(INR in Millions)

For the year ended

FFor the year ended

Particulars S
el Netes Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| Revenue [rom operations 25 2,328.60 1.384.85
1l Other income 26 146,48 124.32
1 Total income (1 + 1) 247508 1,509.17
v Expenses
Employee benelits expense 27 233.84 210,12
Finance costs 28 15.32 3.7
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 84.79 6.62
Other expenses 30 766,56 414.50
Total expenses 1,024.51 662.95
vV Profit before tax (I11-1V) 1,450.57 846.22
Vi Tax expense: 22
Current tax 378.73 225.76
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 7.22 1.00
Deltrred tax eredit (7.41) (3.52)
Total tax expense 378.54 223.24
Vil Profit for the year (V-VI) 1,072.03 622.98
VIl Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in 31
subsequent years
Re-measurement pains on defined benefit plans (2.94) 4.92
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 0.74 (1.24)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (2.20) 3.68
IX Total comprehensive income of the year, net of tax (VII+VIII) 1.069.83 626.66
Earnings per share: (INR) [face value of INR 2 per share|
Basic and Diluted 32
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 4,93 2.87
Summary of signilicant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

IFor S.K. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI [irm registration number; 101049W/12300004

b

I
Partner

i

' Yogesh Midha

Membership No.: 09494

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 235, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Easy Trip Planners Limited

l{m@ Pitti
irector

IIN: 02172265
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

N y . ,."'" 37 ik

Ashish Kumar Bansal
Chiefl Finaneial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25. 2022

o tﬂ//ﬁilmnt Pittie

Director

DIN: 03136369
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

N
~. o

P‘K\Mi

Company Secretary
Membership No: A30412
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 25. 2022



Eusy Trip Planners Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the
CIN - L63090DL2008PLC1TI04]

ear ended March 31, 2022

(NI in Millions)

Particuliey

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

A Cash Mow from operating nctivities
b Profit before tax

Prafil before tax

T Adjustonents to reconcile profit before tax fo net cash Mows:
Depreciation and amoitization expenses
Advances written off
Assets written ol
Finunce cost
Interest income

- On deposits with banl
= On lonns and others
Impairment allowance of trade recelvables
Provision for doubtiul advances
Bad debts
Dividend income

Fair vatlue gain on financial instruments at fir villue through profit or loss

Liability no longer required weliten buck
Income from financial giarmmtee

3 Operating profit before working capital changes {1+2)

4 Working Capital adjnstments:
Deerease / (Increase) in trade recoivibles
Decrease / (Inerease) in financial assers
(Increase) in other cunrent assets
{1 )11 in trade poy
Inerease in other financial labilitics
Incrense / (Deerense) in other current linbilltios
(Deerease) in contraet labilities
Increase in provisions
Net changes in working capital

i

5 Net eash Nows from operating activities (3+4)

(] Divect taxes paid (net of refunds)

T Nel cash NMows from operiting activities (5-6) (A}
It Cash Mow from investing activities:

Purchase of investments
| iy

Payment for Purchase of property, plant and i 1

Investments in bank deposits (laving orlginal matarity of more than three months)

Dividend reccived
Imerest received
Net eash Mlow fromf{nsed in) investing netivities (1)

€ Cash Now Mrom luancing sctivities:
Payment of dividend
Loans to relied parties
Proceeds from current borrowings
Finance eosts paid
Nel easl Row fromf{nsed in) Anancing netivities (C)

D Nelinereasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

E  Cash & cash equivalents os at the Broginning ol the year
Cash & cash equivalents as at the end of the year (D+E)

Cash nnd cash equivalents comprises;
Cash on hand
Fuumds in transit
Balarices with banks.
- Current acconnt

= Deposit account (with original maturity of three montlis or Joss)

Total cash and eash equivalents (Refer note 12)

"Balimee in current aevount ineludes INIRMIL (Mareh 31, 2021 1NI 0 04) shich is in natare of restriered cish

inting palicies

of sipnificant a

under development

145057 Bl 22
145057 84622
BT Ga2
- 356
1.30
1408 2059
(H1681) (95 87)
(0 6i) (133N
084 8.00
1678 642
235 1326
10.29) (n23)
[LINES] 10 16)
(16.23) (323.43)
(292) (1.73)
(90,44) {367 28)
136013 476 94
{219.10) 208,51
(57.26) 202 87
139745 (536 46)
8433 (4 98}
3910 674,60
(15.50) 2300
(310.53) [29.34)
17.93 770
{658.46) 606,59
S01.67 1,085 53
{415.35) (241 80)
86.32 84373
(184.78) 0.00
(1726) (5.84)
(468 T4} (349 15)
028 033
10774 124 .64
(562.76) (230.13)
(325.94) -
(47 68) =
390,62 3
[RERAD] 10.74)
9,25 {0 74)
(467.19) 61287
F43 65 1301 78
276.46 743 65
- 062
198 .03 B3B3
7323 34003
320 397
276,46 43 65

ta

The aceompanying noles o
As per our report of even date

aral part ol the financial statements

For 5.8, Batliboi & Associntes LLP
Chartered Accountonis
FCAT T registration nomber: [0/ EIN000-
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per Y nzesty Midha
Partner
Muambership No o 064

Place. New Dulli
Dimte May 25, 2023
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Date May 25, 2022

Ashish Kuoiar Bansal

Chiel Finan

Place New Delhi
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Oficer

|
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Rikant Pittie
Birector

DI 03 136360
Place New Delhi
Date May 25, 2022

‘ompany Secreiary
Membership No
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Easy Trip Planners Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in equity for the year cnded Mareh 31, 2022

CIN - L63090DL2008PLC17904
All amounts in INR million (unless otherwise stated)

{#) Equity Share Capital

Particalars

Balance as at Mareh 31, 2020
Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Add: Changes in equily share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31,2022

(b} Other Equity

Balance as at April 01, 2020

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Balance as at April 01, 2021

Add: Profit [or the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year
Add: Bonus share issucd during the year

Add: Interim dividend paid during the year
‘Total comprehensive income Tor the year
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Nature and purpose of reserves

Number of shares Amount
10,86.45,000 217.29
10,86,45,000 217.29
10.86,45,000 217.29
21,72.90.000 434.58

Retained earnings

Total other Equity

809.87 809.87
62298 622,98
3.68 3.68
626.66 626.66
1,436.53 1,436.53
1.436.53 1.436.53
1.072.03 1,072.03
(2.20) (2.20)
(217.29) (217.29)
(325.96) (325.96)
526.58 526.58
1,963.11 1,963.11

Retained earnings represents cumulative profits of the Company. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

As per our report of even date

For 8.1, Batliboi & Associates LIP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

[

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 09494 ]

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of

Easy Trip Planners, Limited

P o '
HJ&‘V
Nishant Pitti ke
Director
DIN: 02172265
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

Ashish Kumar Bansal
Chicf Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

v o=

Rikant Pittie
Director

DIN: 03136369
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25. 2022

7%
.ﬂ\‘ "\ \;.-\- J
I’%wi

Company Secretary
Membership No: A50412
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 25, 2022



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes fo standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

I. Corporate Information

Easy Trip Planners Limited (formerly known as "Easy Trip Planners Private Limited") (‘the Company’) was a
private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on June 04, 2008 under the provisions of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 replaced with Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f April 01, 2014. The Company is
engaged in the business of providing reservation and booking services related to travel and tourism through ease
my trip-portal, ease my trip-app or in-house call-centre. The registered office of the Company is located at 223,
Patparganj Industrial Area, Delhi 110092. The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. April 12,
2019 and consequently the name of the Company has changed from Easy trip Planners Private Limited to Easy
trip Planners Limited.

The Company has completed its initial public offering (IPO) of 27,272,727 Equity Share of Face Value of INR
2 each for cash at a price of INR |87 per Equity Share aggregating to INR 5,100 million through 100% Offer for
Sale. Pursuant to IPO, the Equity Shares of the Company got listed on Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE") and
National Stock Exchange ("NSE") on March 19, 2021,

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Indian
Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and presentation requirements of
Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111). The financial statements
comply with Ind AS notified by Ministry of Company Affairs (MCA).

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of directors on May 25, 2022,

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the
Company, to all the years presented in the said financial statements.

The preparation of the said financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the linancial statements, or areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in Note 2.21.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are rounded to
the nearest millions, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the liability takes place either:

e [n the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market parlicipant’s ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use,

J



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

year.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

FFor the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

2.3 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected (o be realised within twelve months after the
reporting year, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting year.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily
for the purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting year.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment ('PPE'")

An item is recognised as an asset, il and only il it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, il any.

The initial cost of PPE comprises purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any

trade discounts and rebates), borrowing costs il capilalization criteria are met and directly aitributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Y



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit
and Loss at the time of incurrence.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at

based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are in line with the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Particulars Years
Buildings 60
Furniture and fixtures 10
Motor vehicles 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Vehicle- Others 8

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and hence, is not depreciated.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at-least
as at each reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effects of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual
values and / or depreciation method are accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated
over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company recognises such components separately and depreciates them based on their specific useful lives. All
repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which they are
incurred.

2.5 Intangible assets

identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benelils attributed to the asset will [low to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assels are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimaled useful economic life. The Company
amortizes software over the best estimate of its useful life which is three years Website maintenance costs are
charged to expense as incurred.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed al least at each {inancial year end, If the expected

useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
prospectively. [ there has been a significant change in the expecled patiern of economic benefits from the asset, the

N



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

amoitization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in accordance with
Ind AS 8 - dccounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difTerence between the net
disposal praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

2.6 Investment property

investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

An investment in land or buildings, which is held by the Company to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both, rather than intended to use by, or in the operations of, the Company, is classified as investment property.

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly atiributable cost
of bringing the investment property to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of 60 years, which is in line with the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on leasehold land component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
period of lease of 90 years, which is in line with the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act,
2013.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the year of
derecognition.

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asseC’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimales
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limiled so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUSs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, as appropriate, and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

2.8 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identilied asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should
be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

— the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

— the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either:

e the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

e the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

Wihere the Company is the lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment,

In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or. if that rate cannot be readily
determined. the Company's incremental berrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing

rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the lollowing:

v



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend en an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties
for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is
a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant
and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘other non-current financial liabilities” in the statement of financial position.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies Section 2.7 Impairment of
non-financial assets.

Where the Company is the lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the year in which they are earned.

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is based on whether fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.9 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes

a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they accur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
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costs thai an enlity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair
value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at
settlement date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash in banks and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Classification

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments), designated at fair value through
OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) and fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial instruments at amortized cost

A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the prineipal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other income
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables.

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI)
A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
linancial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Financial instruments included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at

fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCl. On derecognition of the asset. cumulative sain or loss
£ = 2
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCI o statement of profit and loss.

Y



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL”)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments
included in the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109:
and

®  The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit & loss,

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial assel is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade receivables with no
significant financing component. For all other {inancial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal fo the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case, they are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required
Lo adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it

)
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recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ii) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade
payables and other payables.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured either at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method, or at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

2.11 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty,

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as agent in case of sale of airline tickets and hotel
packages as the supplier is primarily responsible for providing the underlying travel services and the Company
does not control the service provided by the supplier to the traveller.

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers Under Tnd AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company
has adopted the new standard on the transition date using the full retrospective method.

Income from services

A Air passage

income from the sale of aiiline tickets is recognized as an agent on a net commission, incentives and fees on earned
basis nel of discounts given to customers, as the Company does not assume any performance obligation post the

confirmation of the issuance of an airline ticket to the customer. Company records allowance for cancellations at
the time of the transaction based on historical experience,
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Incentives from airlines are considered as earned when the performance obligations under the incentive schemes
are achieved / expected to be achieved at the end of year.

The Company has measured the revenue in respect of its performance obligation of a contract at its standalone
selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its
standalone selling price.

The specific recognition criteria described below is also considered before revenue is recognised.
Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Company recognizes incentives from airlines when incentives are expected to be achieved as per the threshold
specified in the contract. To estimate the variable consideration, the Company applies the expected value method
for contracts. The selected method that best predicts amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the
amount of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company uses historical data for forecasting future
cancellations to come up with expected cancellation percentages. These percentages are applied to determine the
expected value of the variable consideration.

B.  Hotels Packages

[ncome from hotel reservation is recognized as an agent on a net basis. Revenue is recognised at the time of issuance
of hotel voucher including for non-refundable transactions as the Company does not assume any performance
obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of hotel voucher to the customer.

Packages assembled by individual travellers through packaging functionality on our websites generally includes a
merchant hotel component and some combinations of an air, car or destination services component. The individual
package components are accounted for as separate performance obligations and recognised in accordance with our
revenue recognition policies stated above. In few cases of corporate packages managed by the Company on an end
to end basis, the Company acts as a principal and takes full responsibility of delivering the services, the revenues
are recognised on a gross basis and cost of services against these packages is recognised as service costs.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfeired to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
belore payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional,

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.. only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section (2.10) Financial instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If' a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilifies are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contracl.
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The Company receives upfront advance from Global Distribution System (“*GDS”) provider for facilitating the
booking of airline tickets on its software which is recognised as deferred revenue at the time of receipt. A pre-
agreed incentive is given to the Company by the GDS provider in periodic intervals for each eligible and confirmed
‘segment’ which is recognised as revenue and adjusted against amount recognised as deferred revenue. A Segment
means a booking for the travel of one passenger over one leg of a journey on a direct flight operated by a single
aircraft under a single flight number.

Non~ cash Consideration

Ind AS 115 requires that the fair value of such non-cash consideration, received or expected to be received by the
customer, is included in the transaction price. The Company measures the non-cash consideration at fair value. If
Company cannot reasonably estimate the fair value of the non-cash consideration, the Company measures the
consideration indirectly by reference to the standalone selling price of the goods or services promised to the
customer in exchange for the consideration.

Income from other sources

Income from other sources, primarily comprising advertising revenue, income from sale of rail and bus tickets and
fees for facilitating website access to travel insurance companies are being recognized when performance
obligation being sale of ticket and sale of insurance in case of advertisement income is satisfied. Income from the
sale of rail and bus tickets is recognized as an agent on a net commission earned basis, as the Company does not
assume any performance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of the ticket to the customer.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider the expecled credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Claims written back

The Company recognise an expected breakage amount as income in proportion to the pattern of rights exercised
by the end-customer. Breakage amounts represents the amount of unexercised rights which are non refundable in
nature as per Company policies.

2.12 Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees which is the functional and presentational currency of the
Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the relevant functional currency at the rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign
exchange differences. on subsequent restatement / settlement, recognized in the statement of profit and loss within
other expenses / other income.

2.13 Employee benefits (Retirement & Other Employee benefits)
Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the Company has no

obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. 1f the
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contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid.

The Company operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under
the plan are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for
using the projected unit credit method. In accordance with the local laws and regulations, all the employees in India
are entitled for the Gratuity plan. The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to eligible employees (meeting the
required vesting service condition) at retirement or termination of employment, based on a pre-defined formula,
The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present value of the defined
benefit obligations less the fair value of plan assets (being the funded portion). The present value of the said
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates of government
bonds. The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount rate to the plan
assets and defined benefit obligations liability. The net interest income / (expense) on the net defined benefit
liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. However, the related re-measurements of the net defined
benefit liability are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. The said
re-measurements comprise of actuarial gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions), the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are not re-classified to the
statement of profit and loss in any of the subsequent years.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses are immediately
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

2.14 Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss, except to the extent thal it relales to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised accordingly.

a. Current tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s income
tax obligation for the year are recognised in the balance sheet as current income tax assets / liabilities. Any interest,
related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in Income tax charge or (credit), but are
rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented in
the balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the current
income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
where there is an intention to settle the current income tax balances on net basis.

b, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial statements.

i



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, uniess stated otherwise)

Deferred tax assels are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of delerred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

2.15 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders or board of directors in Board meeling
or Annual General Meeting as applicable. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value if the effect of
time value of money is not material and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset bul only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

2.18 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will net, require an ouiilow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a presenti obligation
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in respect of which the likelihood of outllow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in financial statements.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less (that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value) and funds in transit. However, for the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
in addition to above items, any bank overdrafis / cash credits that are integral part of the Company’s cash
management, are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

2.20 Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments — Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating
segment for which the operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM 1o make decisions about resource
allocation and performance measurement. For details, refer to note 30.

2,21 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future
events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. The said estimates are based
on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional
evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these
estimates, actual results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do
not turn out fo be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial statements in the
year in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates. '

a. Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the
receivable balances and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into
homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible are provided in note 8 and 34.

b. Defined benefit plans

The costs of post-retirement benefit obligation under the Gratuity plan are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increase, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For details,
refer to note 33.
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¢. Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
present valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. For details, refer to note 32 and 33.

d. Contingencies

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

e. Leases - Estimating the ineremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

f. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any years covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that creale an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to
the leased asset).

Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). Termination options in given in lease of office space to the lease, which
have been included in the lease liability as Company is not intended to terminate the lease. Reason for not to
exercise the termination option is because Company requires the office premise for future period, location of office
premise is prominent and lease rentals are reasonable. There is no future cash outflow in respect to extension and
termination option which is not included in the lease liability.

2.22 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March, 2022, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1 April, 2022,
as below:



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not
significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall
not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any material
impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling 2 Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Group does not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments” and Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
- Interbank Offered Rate (IBOR) reform

In view of the recent amendments in IFRS, and in order to keep the Ind AS converged with IFRS, the Ministry
Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued similar amendments to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107. The key relief provided
by the amendments include a practical expedient for modifications in the financial instrument that result directly
from IBOR reform and temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge accounting requirement. The
amendments do not have significant impact on the financial statements.

%
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Easy Trip Planners Limited

MNotes to Stundalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

CIN - L63090DL2008PLC T 79041

4 Investment propertics

(INR i Millions)

Amount
As at April 01, 2020 2342
Add: Additions made during the year -
Less: Disposals during the year i
As at March 31, 2021 2342
Add: Additions made during the year -
Less: Disposals durmg the yoar -
As al March 31,2022 2342
Depreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2020 0.21
Adil: Depreciation charge lor the year 0.08
Less: On disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 029
Add: Depreciation charge lor the year 0.08
Less: On disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 0.37
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2022 23.05
As nt March 31, 2021 2313

The Company has elecied to contmue with the carrying value for all of its investment property as yecognised in s previous GAAP linaneial statements as
deemed cost on the transition date. Le, April 01, 2017,

Information regarding income and expenditure of

¥ March 31, 20622
Investment propertics

March 31, 2021

Rental incame derived from investment properties = =
Direet operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) -
arising from investment properties that did not generate rental =

income

Profit  arising  from  investment  propertics  before - .
deprecintion and indirect expenses

Less - Depreciation 0.08 0.08

(Loss)/Profit arising from investment propertics before

4 (0.08) (0.08)
indirect expenses

Fair Value of Investment propertics

Number of mvestment propertics 2 2
Fair value of investment properties outstanding as at that date 75.19 71.40

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Crest Capital Group Pyt Ltd, an acerediated independent valuer. CCGPL is a repistered valuer os defined
under rule 2 of companies (Registered valuers and valuntion ) Rules. 2017,

Investment properties consists of land and buildings situated in Indin for rental ineome and capital appreciation. The foir values of investmen| properties have
been determined by independent valuer, The Gur valuation is based an prevailing market prices/ price trend of the property in that locality/ city considering the
loeation, size ol plot, approach road, mnantics, locality ele

Investment properties Valuation technique Significant unobservable Range (weighted

Inpuis average)
The Prevailing Market rate Rs. 5 Cr. To 7 Cr.
A-53  (Composile Rate)

Investment properties 1 Composite rate method

{A=53, Anand Vihar Delhi-110092) ol the similar Flu
Animd Vihar

Fair Marker Value
Considered
Realizable value of M

s 3.80.000/50q.m1

80% of the Fawr market
vilue
As per government Crrele 5
Ilnlcpi:l"i-"!ntl s, LO2 1 Per Sgomir,
Total Land area of the

¢ i = 150 50 Square Meters
properly
Toral built-up aren of the

2 l F12.88 Square Meters,

operty

Composite frle method The Prevuiling Market tate
ol the similar Flat No. S-1,
on Second Floor, Plot No.D- Rs. 160 C'r 10 2 Cr.

36, Sector- 12, Chander

Investment properties -2

(Flat No, 5-1, va Second Floor, Plot NoJD- 36, Sector- 12,
Chander Nagar, Ghaziabad, 1LP.)

(Composite Rute)
Nagar, Ghazabid

it ket Ve
l‘un [Trlml\.n.l e Rs. 8.000/8q.11.
Considered
. . 80% of the Far market
Realizable value of Mt e .
value

Super Builtup Area Rs. 2.250/8q.01

s spee s D srentonedly feft k)
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Notes to Standatone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
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5 Intangible assets

Computer Soflware Total
As at April 01, 2020 205 205
Additions 0.87 0.87
Adjustment during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 292 292
Additions 365 3ins
Adjustment during the vear {(0.85) {0.85)
As at March 31, 2022 5.72 5.72
Amortisation and Impairment
As at April 01, 2020 0,79 .79
Charge for the year 0.68 0.68
Adjustment during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 1.47 1.47
Charge Tor the year |.88 1.88
Adjustment during the year (0,79) (0.79)
As at March 31, 2022 2.56 2.56
Net book value
As at March 31, 2022 36 AT
As al March 31, 2021 145 1.45
Intangible assets under development
Intangible assets Total
under development
As at April 01, 2020 .33 3.33
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less: Capitalization during (he year - -
As at March 31, 2021 333 333
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less: Capitalization during the year 13.33) {3.33)
As al March 31, 2022 - -
Intangible assets under develoj t ngeing schedul
As at March 31, 2022
Amount in 1 gible asset under development for a period of
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in promess - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - = - —~ -
As at March 31, 2021
Al in Intangible asset under development for a period of
Less than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 years Mure than 3 years Total
Prajects in progress 33 - - - 333
Prajects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 3.33 - - - 333

(i) The Company has elected Ind AS 101 exemption and continue with the carrying value for all of its intangible assets at its deemed cost on the transition date, i.c. April 01,2017,

(This space has been tmentionedly left blak)
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Notes to Standalone financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
C'IN - L63090D1.2008PLCI79041

6]

Financial assets

Loans
Asal Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Louns to employees 1.31 2.06
Loans to related parties (Refer note 43) 49.80 2.12
Total 5111 4.18
Total current 51.11 418
Total non- current - -
Investments at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Quoted Liguid Mutual Fund Units
755,510 (March 31, 2021: 755,510) units o INR 13.63 cach 10.30 10.15
(March 31, 2021 ; 13.43) fully paid up ol IDFC cash {und-growth E e
Total FVTPL investments 10.30 10.15
Current 10.30 10.15
Mon-ctrrent - =
Total 10.30 10.15
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 10.30 10.15
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 10.30 10.15
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value ol investments 3 .
Investments
Investments in unquoted equity instruments valued at cost
Non-current
As at Asal
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Subsidiaries
Easemytrip Middleeast DMCC .15 1.15
60 shares (March 31, 2021: 60 shares) of AED 1000 each fully paid up
Easemytrip SG Pte, Lid (Formerly known as Singapore Arrivals Ple. Ltd.) 7.66 7.66
150,000 shares (March 31, 2021 150.000 shares) of SGD | each lully paid up
Easemytrip UK Lid 714 7.14
100 shares (March 31, 2021 100 shares) of GBP | each tully paid up (refer note a)
Spree Hotels and Real Estate Private Limited 182.50 -
50,000 shares (March 31, 2021: Nil ) ol INR 10 each fully paid up
Yolobus Private Limited 1.00
100,000 shares (March 31, 2021: Nil ) of INR 10 each fully paid up
Fasemytrip Foundation .00 -
100,000 shares (March 31, 2021: Nil ) of INR 10 each [ully paid up
200.45 15.95
Total Current g 5
Total Non-current 200.45 15,95

a) The Company hus furnished a Onancil gugrantee on behall o Easemytrip UK Limited for working capital demand loan and overdralt
facility taken from ICICI Bank UK PLC. Such [mancial guarantee has been fair valued at the time of initial recognition and recorded as

deemed investment in the subsidiary

by "T'he Company is yet to file Annual Performance Report to Authorised Dealer in respeet of Busemytrip Middleeast DMCC, Singapore

Arrivals Ple Limited and Easemytrip UK Ltd [or the financial year 2019-20 and 2020-21.

{This sperce has been mtentionally left dlank)
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9 Other lnancial assels

As at As ul
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
MNon-current
Deposils with remaiming maturity lor more than 12 months# 1,186.63 137.15
Security deposits 43.72 .50
1,230.35 137.65
Current
Seeurity deposits 40.13 40.78
Interest acerued
- On fixed deposils 35.85 26.54
- On security deposits 1.17 (.96
- On loan Lo related parties (Refer note 36) 0.34 0.12
Others 60).64 4521
138.13 113.61
Total 1.368.48 251.26
Total current 138.13 113.61
Total non- current 1,230.35 137.65

#Bank deposits as al March 31, 2022 include 248 86 (March 31, 2021: INR 22.50) pledged with banks against bank guarantees, bank

overdrall and credit card facility,

10 Other assets

Non-current
Prepaid expense
Capital Advance

Current

Prepaid expense

Tax paid under protest

Advanee to suppliers

Credit impaired

Advance to suppliers

less: Provision for doubtful advances

Total

Total current
Total non- current

Set out below is the movement in the Provision for doubtiul advances of Advance 1o suppliers:

Balances at the beginning of the year
Provision for doubtlul advance

Balances at the end of the year

As at Asal
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
4.83 -
- |12
4.83 12
4,48 0.45
15.60 9.60
1,168.51 803.61
3193 13.14
(31.93) (13.14)
1,188.59 B13.60
1,193.42 814.78
1,188.59 813.60
4.83 1.12
Asal Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
13.14 E
18.78 13.14
31.93 13.14

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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CIN - L63090DL2008PLCTTI04

Il Trade reccivables
(a) Details of trade reeeivables is as follows:

As at Asnl
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Trade recemvables from other than Related Parties 06,21 289.02
Trade receivables from Related Partics 3.61 4.89°
509.82 293.91

Trade receivables inelude unbilled receivables of INR 152,51 (March 31. 2021 0 INR 114.30) and represents the gross amount of air tickel and hotel packages and receivabe
of other travel services to be colleeted [roni customers.

(b) Break-up for sceurity details :

As at As al
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Trade Receivables
Considered pood - secured - -
Considered pood - unsecured 509.82 29391

Trade receivables - Credit Impaired® 74.36 73.53
584.18 36744

Impairment allowanee (allowanee for bad and doubtful debts)

Trade receivables - Credil Impaired (74.36) (73.53)

Total Trade receivables 500,82 29391

“ Including INR 2.23 (March 31, 2021: INR 2.23) recoverable from B2B agents against which the Company also [iled a complaint in 2020 against ex-employees suspecting
collusion,

Movement in expected credit loss allowance

As at As al
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balances at the beginning of the year 73.53 65.53
Additions during the year 0.84 8.00
Balances nt the end of the year 74.36 73.53
As at March 31,2022
Particulars Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than Six 6 months - | More than 3
month year 12 yenrs 23 years years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 357.10 0.21 - - - 35731
(11) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 6,03 9.54 - - 15,57
(Hi)Unbilled Trade Receivable 134.80 17.71 - - - 152,51
Less:
Allowanee for Credit Impaired - (6.03) 19.54) - - (13.37)
Total 491.90 17.92 - - - 509.82
Asal March 31, 2021
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less llfl'ln 6 6 months - | 12 Jears 23 vears More than 3 Total
year Yeirs
(1) Undisputed Trade recetvables - considered good 179.61 - - - - 179.01
(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 13.74 39.24 1277 7.78 73.53
(ntitnbilled Trade Receivable 24 .64 84,66 - - 114.30
Less!
Allowance for Credit Impaired - (13.74) (39.24) (12.77) (7.78) (73.53)
Total 204.25 89.66 - - . 293.91
Notes:
| For terms and conditions relating 1o related party receivables, refer note 28,
2 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of () to 30 days.

(s spaee s heen imtentionally left blank)
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12 Cash and cash equivalents

Details of cash and eash equivalents are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021

Cash on hand - 0.62
Funds in transit 198.03 83.83
Balances with banks:

Current account i 73.23 340.03
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 5.20 319.17
Total 276.46 743.65

(a) IFunds in transit represents the amount collected from customers through credit or debit cards / net banking which is outstanding
as at the year end and credited to the company's bank accounts subsequent Lo the year end.

For the purpose of the statement of cash fTow. cash and cash equivalents com prise the following:

As at As al
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Balances with banls:
Current account 73.23 340.03
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 5.20 319.17
Funds in transit 198.03 83.83
Cash on hand E 0.62
Total 276.46 743.05
13 Other bank balances
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Deposits with original maturity ol more than three months but less than twelve 958.41 1.539.15
months
958.41 1.539.15

Bank deposits as at March 31. 2022 include INR 549.45 (March 31.2021: INR 770.86) pledged with banks against bank guarantees.
bank overdraft and credit card facility.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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14 Equity Share Capital

(2} Details of shive eapital i s follows:

Asat As ot
Mareh 31, 2022 Marclh 31, 202

Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
250,000,000 (March 31, 2021 125,000,000 equity shares of INR /- ¢ach S00.00 25000
Essued, subseribed and fully paid-up share eapital
217.290,000 (March 31, 2021; 108,645,000} equity shares of INR 2/- each 434.58 217.29

434.58 21739

() Recancilintion of authorised, issued and subscribed share eapital:

(i) Reconcilintion of nuthorised share eapital as at year end

No. of shares Amount
Ordinary Equity shares
As at April 01, 2020 (Equity shares of INR 2 ench) 12,50,00,000 250.00
Inerease during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 (Equity shares of INR 2 each) 12,50,00,000 250,00
Incrense during the year 12,50L00,000 250,00
As ot March 31, 2022 (Equity shares of TNI 2 each) 25,00.00,000 S00.00
During the year Mareh 31, 2022 the authorised shire capital was inereased by INR 250 i ¢ 125 equity shares of INR 2 cach

(i} Reconciliation of issucd, subseribed and filly paid-up share capital as at year end :
Equity shares

No. of shares Amount
Ordinary Equity share
As at April 01, 2020 (Equity shares of INR 2 cach) H,86,45,000 217.29
Incrense during the year - =
As ot March 31, 2021 (Equity shares of INR 2 each) 10,86,45,000 217.2%
Increase during the year 10,86,45,000 217.29
As at March 31, 2022 (Equity shares of INR 2 each) 21,72,90,000 434.58

c

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 2 per share (March 31,2021 INR 2/~ ezch)  The company declared and paid interim dividend in Indman rupees Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share In the event of hquedation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled fo receive any of the remaming assets of the
Company. afier distbution of all preferential amaunts The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of cquity shares held by the shareholders The Company has poid Interim Dividend of

Rs 32594 durmg the vear ended March 31, 2022

(d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Asat

Name of sharcholder

March 31,2022

Asat
March 31, 202

Equity shares of INR 2 each fully paid Na. of shares

% holding in the
equity shares

Nu. of shares

¥ holding in the
equity shares

B.U,60, 390
806,72, 792

Mishant 'un
Rikant Pittie

As per the records of the Company. including its register of sharcholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding benefieial interest, the above

represents both legal and benelicin] ownerships of shares

37.206%
37.13%

404,583,198
4.03.36.390

37 20%:
3713%

sharcholding

1 =
% Chiange during Mo. of shares No. of shitres
the year
5 W ing i S L %5 holding )
Shareholding of promoters Nos, of shares hld Y holding in the Wi E e Tald & holding in the
equity shares ety shares
Nishant Pitty 0 00% 8.09.66,396 37 26% 404,83, 198 37.26%
Rikanl Pithe 000, 80672792 37 13% 403,306,390 AT 13%
Prashant Pitn 0.00% 1105350 0.51% 5,52.675 05]1%
{e) Apgregate number of Shaves allotted as fully paid by way of honus shaves (during 5 years mmedintely proceeding Mareh 31, 2022):
Aggregate number
Particulars of shares issued in 5 | Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Mareh 31,2020 March 31,2019 Mareh 31,2018
Neirs

|1t:]l‘lll_\' shares allotted as fully pami bonus shares by eapialisation TLIT.190 . . . ) 7117190
of Seeurities Premium Account
Equny shares illoited as ully pasd bonus shares by copitahzation L.10.75,000 140,86.45.000 ] 3 84.30.000

ol aceunilated profits

(s spacy ey boen bvtentionedly fefe dank )
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15  Other Equity

(a) Retained earnings Amount
As at March 31, 2020 809.87
Add: Profit for the year 622.98
Add: Other comprehensive income (or the year net ol tax 3.68
As at Mareh 31, 2021 1,436.53
Add: Profit for the year 1,072.03
Add: Other comprehensive income [or the year net of tax (2.20)
Less: Interim Dividend Paid (325.96)
I.ess: Bonus Share (217.29)
As at March 31, 2022 1,963.11

The disaggregation of changes in OCT by each type ol reserves in equity is disclosed in note 23,

() Distribution made and Proposed
Dividend on equity shares declared and paid

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Final dividend for the year ended March 31.2022:INR Nil per share
(March 31.2021:INR Nil per share)

Interim dividend for the year ended March 31.2022:INR @1 per share. 108.67 -
Interim dividend for the year ended March 31,2021:INR (@2 per share. 217.29 -
325.96 -

Proposed dividend for the year ended March 31,2022:INR Nil per share
(March 31.2021:INR Nil per share)

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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16 Trade payables

Trade payables
- lotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- lotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total

(1) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 day terms,

(1) Refer note 36 for rade payables to related parties,

(i)

As at As al
Mareh 31,2022 March 31, 202]
0.51 0,15
321.85 237.87
322.36 238.02

The amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" ("MSMED") has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with Company. The disclosures relating to the micro, small and medium

enlerprises are as lollows:

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined vader the MSMED Act, 20006

Asat
March 31, 2022

Asal
March 31, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid Lo any supplier as at the end of each

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 0.49 0.15
Interest due on above 0,02
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMLID Act 2006 along with the = =
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when - -
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as n
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
As at March 31, 2022
Out: ling for following periods lrom due date of payments
More than 3
Particulars Not Duc Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total
(1) Total owstanding dues of micro enterprises and (51 - - - 0.51
small enterprises
{i1) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 92.08 212.41 815 8.87 (133 32185
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 92.08 212.92 8.15 8.87 0.33 322.36
As at March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
More than 3
Particulars Not Due ELess than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Tatal
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 0.15 = = - 0.15
small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 39.53 175.30 20.57 129 1.18 237.87
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 39.53 175.45 20.57 1.29 118 238.02
17 Other finaneial linbilities
Asat Asal
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
A. Non current
Finaneial guarantee obligation 0.63 2.53
Total (A) 0.63 253
B. Current
Other payable 14997 |.028.53
Salary payable 21,70 10,40
Pavable to related parties (Refer note 36) 25.18 3504
Finaneial guarantee obligation 1.86 238
Total (B) 1,098,71 1.076.35
Total (A+B) 1,099.34 1.078.88
Total current 1,098.71 |.076.35
Total non- current \ 0.63 253
. As at Asal
18 Borrow £
Ll Mareh 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Bank overdralls 396.90 =
396.90 -

I'he bank overdraft 1s secured agamst lixed deposits and carried interest e ranging (rom 3.63% (o 6.90%
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Contract liability

Deferred revenue
Advanee [rom customers

Total

Total current
Total non- current

Provisions

Details of provisions are as follows:

A. Non- current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision [or gratuity

Total (A)

B. Current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision lor gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Total (B)
Total (A+B)
Total current

Total non- current

Other current liabilities

Provident lund payable

Tax deduction at source payable
Goods and service tax payable
Others

Total

04

(refer note 25 (c))
(refer note 25 (c))

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31. 2021

122.26 344.55
147.35 235.49
269.61 580.04
269.61 367.60
- 212.44
As at As al
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
26.90 18.27
26.90 18.27
0.77 0.36
13.52 4.63
14.29 4.99
41.19 23.26
14.29 4.99
26.90 18.27
As at As al
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
2.22 1.27
45.22 39.59
46.41 68.78
0.45 0.16
94.30 109.80
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22

(i)

(i)

(iii)

23

24

o

Income tax
The major components of income Lax CXPLENSE are

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss COMrises:

Tax Expense:

Current income fax

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years

Deferved tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of lemporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Other comprehensive income (OCT) section

Deferrved tax relating to items in OCLin the year:
Re-measurement gains on defined benelit plans

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate(s)

Profit before tax

At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31. 2021 25.1 7%}
Non-deduetible expenses for tax purposes

Others

Income (ax expense

Incame tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Liabilities for cureent tax (net)

Tax linbilities
Current tax liabilities (net)

Deferved tax asset (net):

Aceelerated depreciation and amortisation for tx putposes

Impact of expenditure charged 1o the statement of prolit and lass in the current year and earlier years but allowable
for tax purposes on payiment basis

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

Net deferred tax asset (net)

Accelerated depreetation and amortisation for lax purposes

Impact ol expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year and earlier vears but allowable
for tax purposes on pavment basis

Alfowanee [or impairment of trade receivaliles

Deferved tax expense/(income)

Reconcifintion of deferved tax asset (net):

Opening balanee ol deferred tax asset (net)

Tax incomef{expense) during the year recognised m profit or loss
Tax income/{expense) during the year recognised in OC1

Closing balance of defevred tax asset (net)

Notes:

The Company olfsets tax assets and Labilities
assets and defer
deferred tax nssets and seutle the deferred 1ax liabilitics simultaneously

I assess

FFor the year ended

For the vear ended

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
378,73 225.76
722 1.00
(7.41) (3.52)
378.54 233 24
For the year ended Tor the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 202]
(.74 (1.24)
0,74 (1.24)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
1,450.57 840622
365.08 21298
5.66 793
0.59 2.33
371.33 22324
378.54 223.24
378.54 223.24
As at Asal
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 202]
95.07 125.57
95.07 125,57
Balance Sheet
As at Asal
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 202]
0.47 0.31
21.83 14.05
18.72 18.51
41.02 il
Statement of profit and loss
For the year ended For the year ended
Narch 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
(0.16) (0.01)
(7.04) (3.18)
(0.21) (0.33)
(7.41) (3.52)
For the year ended FFor the vear ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
32,87 30,59
741 3.52
.74 (1.24)
41.02 3287

and only il it has a legally enfioreeable ripht 1o set ot current tax
tax liabilities relate 10 ineome taxes levied by the same tax authority. [n addition, the Company has

and current tax habilities and he delerred tax
an dmeption to sethe on a net hasis. 1o realise the

1 the realiznbility of delerred tax assels, management considers whether il is probalile. that some portion. of all, of the deferred fax assets will not be realised

The ultimite reakisation of deforred tax assets is dependen upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary dillerences become

deductible Management considers the projected e taxable income and tax planing strategies in making (his assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable
ncame and projections for future faxable icomes over the periods in which the defered fas assets are deductible. management believes that it is probable thal (he

Company will be able to realise the benelits of those deductible differences in future

The Company has elected (o exereise (he option permitted wnder section 1133AA of the Income - tax Act. 1961

as troduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment)

Ordinanee, 2019 dated September 20, 2019, Accordingly. during the venr ended March 31,2022 (he Company has recogmised the provision for income tax and
remeasured its deferred tax assets basis the re preseribed (hereby and the reluted mpaet is recognised. The impaet of change in tax rate on deferred 1oy assels is

thisclosed above
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25 Revenue from operations

(a)

(b)

(e)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue [rom contracts with customers:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Type of goods or service
Rendering of services

Air Passage 2,042.26 1.284.27

Hotel Packages (18.33) 4.88

Other services (5.81) 9.67
Total revenue from contracts with customers (A) 2,018.12 1.298.82

Given that Company's products and services are available on a technology platform to customers globally. consequently. the necessary
information to track accurate geographical location of customers is not available.

Timing of revenue recognition

Services translerred at a point in time 2,018.12 1,298.82
Services transierred over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,018.12 1.298.82

Set out below. is the reconciliation of the revenue from operations with the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue
External customers 2,018.12 1.298.82
Inter-segment - -
2,018.12 1.298.82
Inter-segment adjustments and eliminations - -
Total revenue from contract with customers 2,018.12 1.298.82
Contract balances
For the year ended IFor the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Trade receivables 509.82 293.91
Contract liabilities 269.61 580.04

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days. In March 31. 2022, INR 0.84 (March 31. 2021: INR § )
was recognised as Impairment allowance ol trade receivables.

Contract liabilitics consists of delerred revenue ol INR 122.26 (March 31, 2021: INR 344.55) which is advance received towards productivity
incentive which will be recognised as revenue on the basis of active and conlirmed scgment bookings.
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(iii) Contract liabilitics also consists ol advance [rom customers of INR 147.35 (March 31, 2021: INR 235.49) which refers 1o advance received

(d)

(e)

from B2B customers (travel agents) and corporate customers lor issue ol tickets and hotel packages. The Company acts as an agent in such
cases. hence. only a part of this advanee i.e. Commission income [rom such advance will be transferred to revenue. There are no signilicant
movements in these balances throughout the years presented.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:
For the year ended lFor the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021

Revenue as per contracted price 3,667.88 1.894.53
Adjustments

l.ess: Discounts offered to customers 1,649,76 595.71
Revenue {rom contracts with customers 2,018.12 1.298.82
Performance obligations

Information about the Company's performance obligations are summarised below:
&

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsalisfied) are as [ollows:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Within one year 269.61 367.60
More than one year 212.44
269.61 580.04

The performance obligations expecled to be recognised in more than one year relate to Global Distribution System (“GDS™) provider for
lacilitating the booking of airline tickets on its software that is to be satislied beyond one year. All the other remaining performance
obligations are expeeted to be recognised within one year.

Other operating revenue

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advertisement revenue® 310.48 86.03
Total other operating revenue (B) 310.48 86.03
Total revenue from operations (A + B) 2,328.60 1.384.85

* Advertising revenue majorly comprises of [ees for facilitating website access (o a travel insurance company and co-lunding arrangements
with a banking company wherein a part of discount is borne by the banking company.

(This space has been intentionadly lefi blank)
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26 Other income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Interest income:
On deposits with bank 116.81 95.87
On loans 0.44 12.85
On [inancial assels carried at amortised cosl 0.46 -
On others 0.22 0,45
Dividend income 0.29 0.23
Liabilities no longer required written back 16.23 5.50
Fair value gain on financial instruments at lair value through profit or loss 0.14 0.16
Bad debts and advances written ol recovered 9.47 4.69
Income {rom financial guarantee 2.42 173
Miscellaneous Income - 2.84
Total 146.48 124.32

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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27

28

29

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to PF and other funds (refer note 33)
Gratuily expenses (refer note 33)

StalT wellare expenses

Total

Finance costs

Interest on:
Overdralis
Others

Bank charges

Total

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation ol investment property

Total

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

Iror the year ended

IFor the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
214.56 198.89
7.62 4.95
8.18 5.78
3.48 0.49
233.84 210.12

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
4.86 0.74
9.19 28.84
127 2,13
15.32 31.71

For the year ended

FFor the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
6.83 5.86
1.88 0.68
0.08 0.08
8.79 6.62
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30

(2)

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repair and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

- Building

- Others

Advertising and sales promotion
Commission

Travelling expenses

Communication costs

Printing and stationery

Dircctor sitting lee

Impairment allowance of trade receivables
Legal and professional expenses
Payment to auditors [refer note (a) below]
Assets written ofT

Advances written ofT

Provision lor doubtful advances
Oulsourcing expense

Provision for Conlingency

Bad debts

Credit card charges

CSR expenditure |refer note (b) below]
Payment gateway charges
Miscellancous expenses

Details of payment made fo auditors are as lollows:

For the year ended

FFor the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
572 2.78
4.53 .10
3.32 2,99
0.83 1.03
2.18 1.50
4,19 1.29

47.57 16.99
329.78 147,84
20.66 2.06
8.18 0.42
3.70 3.39
0.53 0.79
4.69 1.53
0.84 8.00
30.70 10.69
7.33 3.54
1.30 -
. 3.56
18.78 6.42
- 4.08
- 1.50
2.35 13.26
5.98 25.71
11.50 547
247.19 147.65
4.71 0.92
766.56 414.50

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
As auditors:
Audit lee T.28 3.50
Others Services - 0.04
In other capacity
Reimbursement ol expenses 0.08 -
7.33 3.54

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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(b)  Details of CSR expenditure:

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
(b) Amount approved by the Board lo be spent during the year

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

FFor the year ended
March 31. 2021

11.03
11.50

5.47
547

Particulars Paid in cash

Yet to be paid

Total

(c) Amount spent during the year ended on March 31. 2022:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -
it} On purposes other than (i) above 11.94
(d) Amount spent during the year ended on March 31 . 2021:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 9.50

(¢) Details related to spent/unspent obligalions:
i) Contribuition to- Easemytrip Foundation® 11.50
i) Unspent amount in relation to :
- Ongoing projecti 11.50
- Other than Ongoing project "

11.94

9.94

11.50

# The company has given contribution to Fasemytrip Foundation (~Trust”™) amounting INR 11.50. As on date the amount of contribution
has not been spend by trust. subsequent to year end trust has transferred the amount (o a special account in compliance of provision of sub

section (6) ol section 135 of Companies Act,

* Refer Note No. 36 of Related parly

S
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Components of Other Comprehensive Income

The disaggregation ol changes to OCI by each lype ol reserve in equity is shown below:

Retained earnings

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on delined benefit plans (2.94) 4.92
Income fax effect 0.74 (1.24)
(2.20) 3.68

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number ol equity shares outstanding during the year

The following reflects the profit and share capital data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Number ol equily shares at the beginning of the year 10,86,45,000 10,86.45.000
Equity shares issued during the financial ycar 2021-22 pursuant lo bonus issue* 10,86,45,000 10.86.45.000
Weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding during the year 21,72,90,000 21.72.90.000

#The Company has allotted 10.86.45.000 fully paid up equity shares of face value 32/~ cach during the year ended March 31, 2022 pursuant to a
bonus issue approved by the sharcholders. Consequent to this bonus issue. the number ol ordinary shares outstanding is increased by number of
shares issued as bonus shares in current year and comparative year presented as if the event had occurred at the beginning of the carliest year
presented.

For the year ended IFor the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Prolit attributable to the equity holders of the Company 1,072.03 622.98
Al sl e . sttty elaree (& o - 4 10 4 1 B 1
\\f'.t.l.fc,}hl(..d average number ol equity shares [or the purpose of basic and diluted EPS (no. in 217.29 217.29
millions)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share [Nominal value INR 2 per share| 4.93 2.87

Weighted average number ol shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity shares
issued during year. multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting fhctor is the number of days for which the specific shares are
oulstanding as a proportion of total number of days during the year.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blantk)
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33 Employce Benefits

A, Defined Contribution Pluans
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and supperannuation fund which are defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. The
contributions are made to the registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed
and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is INR 7.62
(March 31, 2021 INR 4.95).

B. Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity:
The gratvity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act. employees who have compleled five years of service are entitled to
specilic benelit. The level of benelit provided depends on the member's lenpth of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled 1o a benefit
equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for cach completed year of service with part thereol in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 2
million, The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is carlier.
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected
unit eredit method, which recognises cach year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures cach unil separately
Lo build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash lows. The discount rate used for determining
the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the markel vields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation,
Actuarial gains and losses (net of lax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profits or losses and amounts recognised in the
balance sheet for the respective plans:

Movement in obligation

For the year ended IFor the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of obligation at beginning of the year 18.63 17.77
Interest cost 1.26 121
Current service cost 6.92 457
Actuarial loss on obligation
- [Economic assumptions (2.21) 0.13
- Experience adjustment 5.15 (5.05)
Benefits paid (2.08) =
Present value of obligation at the closing of the year 27.67 18.63

Balance Sheet

Present value of delined benelit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation (net)

Expenses recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Current service cost
Interest cost on benelit obligation
Net benefil expense

Lxpenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in fnancial assumptions
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

For the year ended

or the year ended

Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
27.67 18.63
27.67 18.63

For the year ended

FFor the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
0.92 4.57
1.26 1.21
8.18 5.78

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

2.21) 0.13
5.15 (5.03)
2.94 (4.92)
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The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 202]
Discount rate 1.26% 6.76%
Future salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
Average expeceted future working life (years) 28.41 28.16
Expected rate of return on plan asset Not applicable Not applicable
Retirement age (years) 58.00 58.00
0, = o, A -
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability* TG of l;\;)'M @iz e Oﬂﬁ:gM @nt2
Withdrawal rate (per annum)
- Up to 30 years 5.00% 5.00%
& FFrom 31 years to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%
- From 44 years to 58 years 2.00% 2.00%

*Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality lable used for mortality assumption.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Impact of the change in discount rate
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 27.67 18.63
a) Impact due to increase ol 0.50 % (2.18) (1.61)
b) Impact due to decrease of .50 % 244 1.81
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 27.67 18.63
a} Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1,76 .41
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.64) (1.37)

The sensitivity analyses above have heen determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping
all other assumptions constant and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

For the year ended Iar the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Year | 0.76 0.36
Year 2 0.92 0.47
Year 3 0.73 0.04
Year 4 073 0.53
Year 3 0,79 0.53
Year 6 onwards 23.74 16.10
Total expected payments 27.67 18.63

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 17.54 years (March 31, 2021: 17.66 years).

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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34

(A)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Commitments and contingencies

Contingent liabilities

As at As al
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

- Litigation & claims (refer note (a) below) 667.68 667.68
- Service tax demand (refer note (b) below) 94.49 93.22
- Guarantees (refer note (¢) below) 340.77 340.77
- Income tax demand (reler note (d) below) 356.98 356.98
Total 1,459.92 1.458.65

The Company has ongoing legal cases against the Company on account of various matters including recovery of moneys advanced in the course
of business. infringement of trademarks and secking damages thereol. The cumulative amounts claimed against the Company in these cases is
INR 667.68: details o which are mentioned below:

(i) Air Worth Travel & Tours Private Limited: one of the ticketing partner with the Company. has filed claim of INR 574.62 against the
Company on grounds of claiming wrongful refunds on flown tickets. failed to make payment of cancellation charges. lower ticket charges for
higher class tickets, excess refunds claimed. This case against the Company is pending for acceptance by the Honourable High Court of Delhi.
Further, the Company had also [iled a case against Air Worth amounting to INR 92.50 in 2015 on account of advances given to them for
ticketing business and is pending for hearings.

(ii) Paytm. the e-commerce platform provider: managed by One97 Communications Limited has filed a case against the Company [or non-
payment of cancellation refunds of INR 53.06 for the period till May 2017 which have been paid by Paytm to its customers on behalf of EMT.
non-payment of performance linked bonus, ete. The matter is pending in Arbitration Proceedings.

(iii) MakeMyTrip has filed a claim of INR 40 for Permanent [njunction Restraining Infringement of Trademarks. Copyrights, Passing O,
Dilution of Goodwill. Unfair Competition. Rendition of’ Accounts of Profits/Damages. Delivery Up ete for use of similar name. The matter is
pending before the Hon'ble IHigh Court of Delhi.

The Company basced on assessment of'its legal counsel believes that any chances of liability devolving upon the Company upon final conclusion
of the cases mentioned above in Court of Law., is not probable and hencee has not provided for any amounts in the financial statements towards
any adverse outcome ol these cases.

The Company had an outstanding service tax demand of INR 30.62 for the financial ycars 2012-13 to 2016-17 pertaining (o incorrect availment
of Cenvat credit on input services in cases where it has taken abatement and exemptions for provision of output services. The Company in
March 2019 has paid INR 15.31 under seetion 127 of Finance (No. 2) Act. 2019 read with rule 9 of the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Scheme. 2019)
as [ull and final settlement against such demand. As per the scheme. such payments would not be construed as admission of liability for any
subsequent years if assessed under the GST regime. Further. the Company based on internal assessment and experl opinion believes chances ol
any liability devolving on this matter is not probable and hence have not provided for any amounts in the financial statements which if
computed for years subsequent to FY 2016-17 shall be INR 94,49 (March 31, 2021: INR 93.22).

(i) INR 120 (March 31. 2021: INR 120): "The Company has given joint bank guaraniees to Travel Agents Federation of India (“TAFT’) in
respect ol air travel business.

(ii) INR 20 (March 31, 2021: INR 20): "The Company has given bank guarantees to International Air Transport Association(*'IATA’) in respeet
of air travel business.

(ifi) INR 70 (March 31. 2021: INR 70); The Company has issued a SBLC (Standby letter of eredit) to ICICI bank towards issuance ol working
capital loan Lo its wholly owned subsidiary Easymytrip UK Limited against (fxed deposits. The bank can invoke the SBLC in full in case of
default of repayments of loan and/or interest by Easemytrip UK Limited.

(iv) INR 105.27 (March 31, 2021: 105.27): The Company has issued a SBLC (Standby letter of credit) to 1CICI bank towards issuance of
overdralt facility to its wholly owned subsidiary Easymytrip UK Limited against [ixed deposits. The bank can invoke the SBLC in full in case
ol delault of repayments of loan and/or interest by Easemytrip UK Limited,

(v) INR 25.5 (March 31. 2021: INR 25.5): The Company has given Bank guarantee to National Stock Exchange of India Lid. (NSE) in
accordance with the conditions precedent for NSE to function as the 'Designated stock exchange! for the Initial public offer ol the Company.
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(d)

(B)

(a)

A search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was carried out at the premises of the Company by the Income Tax authorities during
the financial year 2017-18. On March 27. 2019 the Company has received demand orders amounting to INR 356,98 for financial years 2011-
12 to 2016-17 pertaining to disallowances of cerlain expenses and addition of sales. The Company is contesting these demands at Appellate
level. Subsequent to the year end. the Company has received appellant orders under section 250 of Income Tax Act 1961 for the linancial year
2011-2012. 2012-13. 2013-14 and 2016-17: wherein the demand raised in the earlier notices have been dropped, the Company is yet to receive
final order lor the same. As at March 31. 2022; assessment orders pertaining Lo the financial year 2014-15 and 2015-16 are pending. The
Company. on the basis of its internal assessment and expert opinion believes that the likelihood of these demands sustained is not probable
hence not accrued any amount towards these demands in the (inancial statements.

There arc numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated 28th February, 2019. As a matter of
caution. the Company has made a provision on a prospective basis [rom the date of the SC order. The Company will update its provision. on
receiving [urther clarity on the subject.

Capital commitment

Al March 31. 2022 the Company had commilments of INR Nil (March 31. 2021: INR 0.56) relating o software implementation contract
remaining Lo be executed and not provided for.

Leases
Company as a lessee
The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. The Company has also lease contraets for office

premise having terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the “short-term lease™ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

As at Asal
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within one year = -
Aller 1 year but not more than [ive year - *
More than [ive year - -

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Depreciation expense ol right-of-usc assets - -
Interest expense on lease labilities - -
Expense relating (o short-term leases (included in other expenses) 4.33 1.10
Taotal amount recognised in profit or loss 4.53 1.10

The Company had total cash outllows for leases of INR 4,53 (March 31. 2021: INR 1.10).

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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36

(a)

(i)

(i)

Related Party Disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Subsidiaries

Key managerial personnel (KKMP)

1. Easemytrip Middle ast DMCC

2. Easemytrip SG Pte. Ltd (Formerly known as Singapore Arrival Ple. Ltd.)
3. Easemytrip UK Limited

4. Spree Hotels and Real Estate Private Limited (w.e.f November 26, 2021)
5. Yolobus Private Limited (w.e.l March 03, 2022)

6. Easemylrip Foundation (w.e.l November 17, 2021)

. Prashant Pitti (Whole Time Director)

. Nishant Pitti (Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director)

. Rikant Pittie (Whole Time Dircctor)

- Satya Prakash (Independent Director)

. Usha Mchra (Independent Director)

- Vinod Kumar Tripathi (Independent Director)

7. Abani Kant Jha (Chief Financial Officer) (upto August 31, 2020)

8. Preeti Sharma (Company Sceretary) (upto August 31, 2021)

9. Ashish Kumar Bansal (Chief Financial Officer) (w.c.l February 08, 2021)
10. PriyankaTiwari (Company Sceretary) (w.e.[ September 01, 2021)

Ll bd —

=8 Lh

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Related Party Disclosores (Contd...)

(d) Details of related party transaciions are as below:

Particulars

For the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

For the year ended March 31. 2021

Subsidiary KMP

Subsidiary KMP

(A) Salary paid during the year

Nishant Pitti

- 9.60

- 40.80

Prashant Pitti

- 9.60

- 9.60

Rikant Pittie

- 9.60

- 30.00

Abani Kant Jha

- 0.70

Preeti Sharma

- 0.31

- 0.42

Ashish Kumar Bansal

- 3.32

- 0.76

PriyankaTiwari

- 0.73

(B) Direetor sitting fees paid during the year

Satya Prakash

- 1.62

- .52

Usha Mehra

- 1.34

- 0.51

Vinod Kumar Tripathi

- 1.74

- 0.51

(C) Rent expenses paid

My, Nishant Pitti

- 0.30

(D) Purchase of Services

Easemylrip Middle East DMCC

0.95 -

(E) Sale of goods / services

Easemytrip Middle East DMCC

3.25 -

(F) Service Fee

Nishant Pitti

- 1.42

Rikant Pittie

- 1.42

(G) Loans given

LEasemytrip UK Limited

Spree Hotels and Real Estate Private Limited.

17.30 =

Yolobus Private Limited.

32.50 -

(I1) Repayment

Easemytrip UK Limited

(1) Interest Amount

Easemytrip UK Limited

0.10 -

Spree Hotels and Real Istate Private Limited.

0.23 -

Yolobus Private Limited.

0.11 -

(J) Reimbursement expenses

Nishant Pitti

- 24,98

- 165.53

Rikant Pittie

- 14.60

2 164,74

(K) Investment in subsidiary

Fasemylrip UK Limited

Spree lotels and Real Estate Privale Limited.

182.50 -

Yolobus Private Limiled.

1.00 2

Easemylrip Foundation

L.O0 £

(L) Income from financial punrantee

Fosemytrip UK Limited

242 .

@}__( ‘SR q rmiriimti_n.m

Lasemytrip Foundation

11.50 =

™
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(b)

Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)

Pasticakis As af Mareh 31, 2022 As al March 31, 2021
Subsidiary KMP Subsidiary KMP

(A) Balance receivable at the year end

Easemytrip Middle East DMCC 3.61 - 4.89 -

(B) Balance Payable at the year end

Nishant Pitti - 12.21 - 15.11

Rikant Pittie - 14.06 - 19.93

Prashant Pitti - 0.55 - 0.27

Easemytrip SG Pte. Ltd (Formerly known as Singapore - 0.24 -

Arrival Pte. Lid.)

(C) Investment in Subsidiary outstanding at year end

Easemytrip Middle East DMCC [.15 - 1.15 -

Easemytrip UK Limited** 7.14 - 7.14 -

Fasemytrip SG Pe. Ltd (Formerly known as Singapore 7.66 - 7.66 -

Arrival Pte. Lid.)

Spree Hotels and Real Estate Private Limited. 182.50 - - -

Yolobus Private Limited. 1.00 - L n

Lasy Trip Foundation 1.00 = - -

(ID) Loans given

Lasemytrip UK Limited - - 2.12 -

Spree Hotels and Real Estale Private Limited. 17.30 - - -

Yolobus Private Limited 32.50 - - =

(E) Interest receivable on loan

Easemytrip UK Limited - - 0.12 -

Spree lHotels and Real Lstate Private Limited. 0.23 - - -

Yolobus Private Limited 0.11 - - -

## 1t includes INR 7.14 (March 31, 2021: INR 7.14) deemed investment on account of [air value of premium pertaining (o
financial guarantee of INR 175.27 on behall of Easemytrip UK Limited for working capital demand loan and overdrall

facility taken [rom ICICI Bank UK PLC,

Refer note 43 for terms and conditions of the Loan outstanding from subsidiarics.

ey management personnel compensation

For the vear

IFor the year

Particulars eaded Mareh ended March
31,2022 31,2021
Short term employee benelits 33.16 82.28
Sitting fees 4.69 1.54
Total compensation 37.85 83.82

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting year related to key
management personnel.

The remuneration to the key management personnel does not include the provision made for gratuity & leave benefit. as (hey
arc determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sale and purchase from related partics are made on terms cquivalent to those that prevailing arm's length transaction,
Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and interest free (other than loans) and settlement occurs in cash. For the
year ended March 31. 2022, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties (March 31, 2021 : Nil). This assessment is undertaken cach linancial year through examining the linancial position ol
the related party and the market in which the related party operates. ‘There have been no guarantees provided or reeeived for
any related parly receivables or payables except financial guarantee of INR 175.27 Mn (March 31. 2021 INR 175.27) given
on behall ol Easemytrip UK Limited for working capital demand loan and overdrafl [acility taken [rom ICICI Bank UK PLC,
There were no commitments given to related partics.

W)
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Interim Dividend and Boaus issoe

The Beard of Directors (in the meeting held on November 11, 2021) declared an interim dividend of INR 1/~ ( March 31,2021 INR 2/} hawving par
value of INR 2/~ each per equity share. The record date for payment of Current year interim dividend was November 22, 2021 and the same was paid

on December 9, 2021,

Further. the Company has issued bonus shares of 10,86,45,000 fully paid-up Fquity shares of Rs. 2/ (Rupees Two) cach as fully paid-up Equity
Shares in proportion of | (One) new [ully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two) for every | (One) existing fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs.
2/= (Rupees Two) each to the eligible shareholders of the Company whose names appear in the Registers of Members or in the Register of Beneficial
Owner maintained by the depositories on the record date, i.c., March 02, 2022,

Segiment Information

Business segments

For management purposes the Company is organized into Lines of Business (LOBs) based on its products and services and has following reportable
segments based on the nature of the products the risks and returns the organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems. The segment
resulls are regularly reviewed and performance is assessed by its Chief Operating Decision Maker (C ODM) i.c. whole-time director. LOB wise profits
before taxes finance costs other income depreciation and amortisation are reviewed by CODM on monthly basis. The whole time director(s) monilor
the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment,

The following summary deseribes the operations in each of the Company's reportable SePmenis:
i ) D

Air Passage: Through an internet and mobile based platform and call-centres the Company provides the facility to book and service international and
domestic air tickets to ultimate consumer through B2C (Business To Consumer) and B2B2C (Business to Business to Consumer) channel. Both these
channels share similar characteristics as they are engaged in facilitation of air tickets. Munagement believes that it is appropriate to aggregaie these

two channels as one reporting segment due to similaritics in the nature of business.

Hotels Packages: The Company provides holiday packages and hotel reservations through call-centers and branch offices, The hatel reservations lorm
integral part of the holiday packages and accordingly management believes that it is appropriate o aggregate these services as one reportable segment

due to similarities in the nature of services.

Other services primarily include income from sale of rail and bus tickets, The operations do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds o be a
reportable segment [or any of the years presented in these financial statements.

Adjustments:

1. Finance cost other income and depreciation and amortization are not allocated to indjvidual segments as they are managed at Company level,
2, Current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities are not allocated to individual segments as they are managed at Company level,

Entity wide disclosures

Revenue of INR 259,68 is derived [rom one external customer arising from Air Passage segment for the year ended March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

INR [58.74 [rom one external customers) individually accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue.,

The summary of the segmental information for the year ended and as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars Air P [ Hotel Packages Other services Tatal Operations
Sale of Services 204226 (18.33) (5 81) 2,018.12
Other operating revenue

-Advertisement revenue 306.85 273 .88 310.48
Total Revenue 2,349.11 (15.58) (4.93) 2,328.60
Seament resulls
Less: Operating expenses 988,72 8.88 2.81 1.000.40
Operating profit 1,360.39 (24.45) (7.74) 1,328,19
tnallocated corporate expenses
Less: Finance cost - - - 15,32
Less: Depreciation and Amortization - = - 8.79
Add: Other income - - - 146.48
Profit before tax 1,360.39 (24.45) (7.14) 1.450.57
Segment assels
Allocable assets 1.845.83 941 2096 1.876.20
Unallocable assets - - - 2,840.26
Total assets 1.845.83 9.41 20.96 4.716.46
Segment liabilities
Allocable liabilitics 1.709.23 40.22 1.754.20
Unallocable liabilities - - Ay 564 S8
Total liabilities 1.709.23 40.22 = 231878
Capital Expenditure
Property Plant and Eguipment 13.60 - - 13.60
Intangible assels 3.65 - - 3.65
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The summary of the segmental information for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Particulars Air P il Hotel Packages Other services Total Operations
Sale of Services 1.284,27 4.88 9.67 1,298.82
Other operating revenue

~Advertisement revenue # - - 86.03
Total Revenue 1,370.30 488 9.67 1,384.85
Sepment results
Less: Operating expenses 616,11 2.85 5,66 624.62
Operating Profit 754.19 2,03 4.01 760.23
Unallocated corporate expenses
Less: Finance cost - - - 3171
Less: Depreciation and Amortization £ = - 6.62
Add: Other income - - - 124.32
Profit/ (loss) before tax 754.19 2.03 4.01 846.22
The summary of the segmental information as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Segment asscls
Allocable assets 1.214,74 18,91 10,94 1.244.59
Unallocable assets - - - 2,564 80
Total assels 1,214.74 18.91 10.94 3.809.39
Segment linbilities
Allocable liabilities 1.929.14 3648 116 1,966,78
Unallocable liabilities - - - 188,79
Total linbilities 1,929.14 36.48 1.16 2.155.57
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure
Property Plant and Equipment 3.85 - - 3.85
Intangible assets 0.87 - - 0.87

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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39 Capital Management

l'or the purpose ol Company s capital management. capital includes issued equity capital. securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders, The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value.

The Company manages ils capital structure and makes adjustments to il in light ol changes in economic conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital
strueture, the Company may adjust return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is ncl
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt. interest bearing borrowings, trade and other payables. less cash and

cash equivalents.

Trade Payables (refer note 16)

Other linancial liabilitics (refer note 17)
Borrowings (refer note 18)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12)
Net debts

Lquity share capital (refer note 14)
Other equity (refer note 15)
Total capital

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio (%)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

322.36 238.02
1,099.34 1.078.88
396.90 -
(276.406) (743.65)
1,542.14 573.25
434.58 217.29
1,963.11 1,436.53
2,397.69 1.653.82
3,939.83 2.227.06
39.14% 25.74%

No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended March 31,

2021,

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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40 Fair value measurements

Set out below. is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and [air value of the Company’s financial instruments. including those with
carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at

» & -
LAl March 31,2022 | March31,2021 | March31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss account (FV'TPL)
Investments (Quoted Liquid Mutual Fund Uni 10.30 10.15 10.30 10.15
Financial assets at amortised cost
Investment 200.45 15.95 200.45 15.95
Trade receivables 509.82 293.91 509.82 203.9]
Cash and cash equivalents 276.46 743.65 276.46 743.65
Other bank balances 958.41 1.539.15 958.41 1.539.15
Loans 5111 4.18 51.11 4.18
Other linancial assets 1.368.48 251.26 1.368.48 251.26
Total 3,375.05 2,858.26 3.375.05 2,858.26
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - 322.36 238.01 322.36 238.01
Borrowing 396.90 - 396.90 -
Other financial liabilities 1.099.34 1.078.88 1.099.34 1.078.88
Total 1,818.60 1,316.89 1,818.60 1,316.89

Management has assessed that loans. trade receivables. cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances. trade payables approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair values of the mutual funds are based on price
quotations at the reporting date.

Discount rate used in determining fair value

The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows. where applicable. are based on the incremental borrowing rute of borrower
which in case of financial liabilities is average markel cost of borrowings of the Company and in case of financial assel is the average
markel rate of similar credit rated instrument. The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial
liabilities using the best and most relevant data available,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a foreed or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair values of the Company’s advances are determined by using discount rate that reflects the ineremental borrowing rate as at the end
of the reporting year.

(This space has been infentionally left blank)
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41 TFair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recopnised or disclosed are calegorised within the fair value hicrarchy. described as follows. based on the
lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 11 This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assels
or liabilities.

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes [linancial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are
observable for such items, directly or indirectly,

Level 3: This level of hicrarchy includes items measured using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments is discounted cash flow analysis.

The lollowing table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

Fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022:

IPair value measurement using

i 42 D Signilfcant
Particulars Date of Valuation Total Qun_ted REGES Slgmﬁc:?ni unobservable
active markets | observable inputs !
inpuis
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit or
loss

- Mutual funds March 31, 2022 10.30 10.30 - -

10.30 10.30 - -

There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2022.

Iair value measurement hicrarchy for assets as at March 31, 2021;

I'air value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significaat
Particulars Date of Valuation Total ; i '8 : unohservable
active markets | observable inputs ;
inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit or
loss

- Mutual funds March 31, 2021 10.15 10,15 - -

10.15 10.15 - =

“There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2021,
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(n)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s activities are exposed fo variety of financial risk; credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign comeney risk. The Company™s senior management oversees the management of these risks, The
Company’s senior | eement ensures that the Company”s finoneial risk activities are governed by appropriate pelicies and procedures and that financial risks are identified. measured and managed
in accordance with the Company’s policies and nisk objectives. The Company reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a fnancial instrument or customer contraet, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk lrom its
aperating sctivitics (primarily trode receivables), including deposits with banks and financial mstitutions, [oreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured. Credit risk 1s managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers 1o
whicl the Company grants eredit terms in the normal course of business.,

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows!

Particulars Not Due 0 to 60 days 60 to 120 days 120 to [B0 days  More than 180 Total
As at March 31, 2022 267.76 210.80 27.55 349 75T 84,18
As at March 31, 2021 I 1430 16.47 22,50 10,65 73.53 30744

¥Fhe ageing of trade receivables does not include expected eredit loss.

Expected eredit loss for trade receivables using simplified npprouch

As al As al
Gross carrying amount 58418 36744
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) (74,56} (73.53)
Carrying of trade receivables (nct of impairment) 09,81 293.91

Financial Guaraniees

The Compuny is exposed to eredit risk in relation to Tinaneial guarmntee given to bank. The Company’s maxnnum exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the Company could have o pay if
the pusrantee s ealled on. Financial guarantees are accounted as explained in note 2,10, The maximum amount Company could be forced to seitle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the goarantee is INR 175.27 Mn. Based on expectations at the end ol the reporting year, the Company considers that it is more likely than not
that such an amount will not be payable under the amangement,

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may nol be able o meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incuring unaceeptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all

times maintain optimum levels of liquidity 1o meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys » robust cash management system, I
maintaing adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractunl undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2022 Carrying amount On Pemand Less than 3 h Jto 12 i I to 5 years > 5 years Taotal

Other financial liabilities 1.096_85 1.096.85 - - - - 1,096.85
Borrowings 39690 39690 300,90
Financial puarantee contracts™ 2.49 249 5 = i i 2,49
Trade payables 322.36 92.08 230.28 - - 322.30
Tatal 1.518.60 1.496.24 92.08 230.28 - - 1.818.00
As at March 31,2021 Carrying t On Demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months I to § years =5 years Total

Other linancial liabilities 107888 1.078.8% - 5 - - 1.078.88
Financial puarnnice contracts® 175.27 17527 - - - - 175.27
Trade payables 238.02 - 39.54 19848 - 238,02
Total 1,492.18 1,254.15 39,54 198.18 - - 149218

* Based on the maximinm amaount thit can be called for under the fnancial guarantee contract,

(s spaee s been fentionafly lefi dlank)
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(a}

Market rishk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of [uture eash Mows of a linancial instrument will Muctunte because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types ol risk: interest mie risk,
currency risk and othier price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk, Financial instruments affeeted by market sk inchude trade pavabiles m foreign currency.

Foreign currency risk:

The Muetuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impaet on the statement of profit or loss, where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets/Habilitics are
denominated in a currency other than the functional eurrency of the Company. The Company underiakes transactions denominated in foreign currencics and thus it is exposed (o exchange rate
Nuetuations. The Company has a treasury team which evaluntes (he impact of foreipgn exchange rate Muctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks and advises the management of any
material adverse effect on the Company,

Particular of

I foreign cx

¢ payvables as at the reporting daie ¢

Curvency

As at March 31, 2022

As at Mareh 31, 2021

Foreign Rupee equivalent

Foreign

Rupee equivalent

currency Amount  (INR million) currency Amoint (INR million)
(in million) (in million)
LSD 0.05 4.09 .09 6.93
EUR - - (.00 .24
THIE - - (.09 0.22
AED 0.36 7.66 - -
SG1D - - 0.00 (.24

Particular of unhedpged foreign exposure receivable as at the reporting daie :

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Chsriiicy Foreign Rupee equivalent Foreign Rupee equivilent
currency Amount  (INR million) curreney Amount (NI million)
(in million) (in_million)
ALED 0.18 .61 0.25 4.39

Foreign currency sensitivity on unhedged exposure
The lollowing table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in exchange rates on prafit before 1ax arising as a result of the revaluation of the Company's foreign currency financial

assels and unhedgped liabilities.

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2022

Particulors Effect on profit | Effect on pre- tax| Effect on profit |Effect on pre- tux
before tax equity before tax cquify
Increase by 5% in LUSD (0.20) (0.20) (0.35) (0,35)
Decrease by 5% in USD 0.20 0.20 0.35 0.35
Inerease by $% in AED (0.20) {0.20) 0.24 0.24
Decrease by 5% in AED 0.20 0.20 (0.24) (0.24)
Increase by 5% in EUR = - [RIAD] (0.071)
Deecrease by 5% m EUR - - 0.0l .01
Tncrease by 5% in THIB - - (0.00) (0.00)
Decrense by 5% in THB - - 0.00 0.00
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i)
ii)

iii)

iv)

v}

vi)

Other Statutory Information

The Company does not have any Benan property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company lor helding any Benami property.
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto curreney or Virtual Currency during the respective financial years

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:
(a) direetly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or oh behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books ol accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

vii) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

Viii) The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Act,
ix) The Company has complied with the the number of layers preseribed under of Section 2(87) of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

x)

Rules.2017
The Company has balance with the befow-mentioned companics struck ol under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013:
. Nature of transactions Balance outstanding Relationship with the Struck off
Name of struck off Company 2 = : §
with struck-off Company 3i-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 | company, if any, to be disclosed

Srinikha Travels Private Limited Advance from customer -= None
Jsr Llolidays Private Limited Advance from customer -* None
C M I Limited Advance lrom customer -% None
Exotisch Holidays Ope Private Limited Advance [rom customer - None
Dream Vacations Private Limited Advance lrom customer " Mone
Originate Infotech Private Limiled Advance [rom customer - None
Upzio Tours And Travels Private Limited Advance [rom customer -* None
Worthyourhelidays India Privale Limited Advance from customer -+ None
Way2Journey Excursion Private Limited Advance [rom cuslomer -+ None
Flyingindia Ilolidays Private Limited Advance from customer -* None
Justyatra Holidavs And Resorts Privatelimited Advance from customer -# None
Unitrek Solutions Private Limited Advance from customer -+ None
Wendline Tours And Travels (Ope) Privatelimited Advance from cuslomer & None
Kapri Education And Immigration Servicesprivate Limited | Advance from customer - None
Kiara Travels And Tours Private Limited Advance from customer - Naone
Nliven Travel Boutique Private Limited Advance [rom customer - None
Travels Unltd Media Private Limiled Advance from customer (0.01) None
Divas Tour Private Limited Advance from customer -F Naone
George Travels And Communicationsprivate Limited Advance from customer -# None
Veare Trip Private Limited Advance from customer & Mone
Buzzzindia Solutions Private Limited Advance [rom customer - Nong
Bon Voyage Travelicious Planners Privatelimited Advance lrom cuslomer (0.05 MNone
Kingsolve Services Private Limiled Advance from customer - None
Tripsoiport Tours And Travels Privatelimited Advance [rom customer - Nane
Tdh Tours And Travel Private Limited Advance from customer - None
M ¥ Holiday Makers India Private Limited Advance [rom customer - None
Roshan Holidays Private Limited Advance from customer - Nowne
Ravens Lesures Private Limited Advance from cuslomer - MNone
Arrival Rightway Airlinks Privatelimited Advance from customer (0.04) Nong
Pragali Tours And Travels Privatelimited Advance from customer (0.01) Nane
Ake Travel Solution (Ope) Privatelimited Advance from customer = None
Sipsu Holidays Private Limited Advanee [rom customer 0.13 None
Gec Tour And Hospitahity Private Limited Advance Iram customer - None
Jankit It Solutions Private Limiled Advinee lrom cuslomer -+ Mone
Atlantic Heolidays Private Limited Advance [rom customer - None
Mickey Book T'ravel Park Private Limited Advance [rom customer - None
Transindus Consulting Private Limited Advance from cuslomer A None
Flyair Holidays Private Limiled Advance from customer ((106) None
Red Trading Private Limited Advance from customer - Nune
Jovial Vacations Private Limited Advance from customer - None
Expert Internationn] Private Limited Advance from customer -+ Nong
Inspired Journeys Private Limited Advance from customer (001 None
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Naiie of stinek off Comiianiy Nature of transactions Balunce outstanding Relationship with the Struck off

St with struek-off Company J1-Nar-22 31-Mar-21 company, il any, (o be disclosed
IMaha Music And Films Production Houseprivate Limited [Advance from customer - - None
Ideal Farming Company Private Limited Advance from customer - - None
Blue Lemon Hospitality Private Limited Advance [rom customer - {0.01) None
Blue Jet Holidays Private Limited Advance [rom customer - e None
Alr Bazaar Holidays Private Limited Advance [tom customer - - None
Freedom Travels Private Limited Trade Payables - (0.01) None

# amount less than INR | lakh.

Sections 92-92F of Income Tax Act. 1961 prescribe Transfer Pricing repulations for computing the taxable income and expenditure lrom 'international transactions'
between ‘associated enterprises’ on an 'arm's length' basis, These regulations, inter alia, also require the maintenance of preseribed documents and information
including furnishing a report from an Accountant within the due date of filing the return of income, The Company has undertaken necessary steps to comply with the
Transfer Pricing regulations. The Management is of the opinion that the international transactions are at arn's length. and henee the aforesaid legislation will ot have
any impact on the financial statements. particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of pravision lor taxation.

The Code on Social Seeurity. 2020 (*Code’) relating to employce benefits during employment and post-cmployment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020, The Code has been published in the Guzette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into clTect las ot been notified and the linal
rules / interpretation have not yet been issued. The company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the
period the Code becomues effective,

During the year ended March 31, 2022; the Company has re-classified income from unexercised rights which are non-refundable in nature from other income to
revente [rom operations since it provides more reliable and relevant information to the users of its financial statements as it is more aligned to practices adopted by its
competitors. Accordingly, previous period numbers have also been regrouped to confirm to the current period presentation.

COVID-19 Pandemic

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic including second wave has resulted in economic slowdown, Various restrictions on travel have been imposed
across the globe which have led to huge amount of cancellations and limited new air travel, hotel packages, bus and train bookings. The Company has undertaken
certain cost reduction initiatives, including implementing salary reductions and work from home policies, deferring non-critical capital expenditures and renegotiating
the supplier payments and contracts. The Company expects to continue to adapt these policies and cost reduction initiatives as the situation evolves.

In preparation of these standalone financial Statements, the Company has considered the possible effeets that may result from COVID-19 on the carrying amount of
its assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global conditions because of COVID-19, the Company, as on date on
approval of these standalone linancial statements has taken into account both the current situation and the likely future developments and has considered internal and
external sources ol information to arrive at its assessment, The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates
expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s standalone financial statements may differ from that
estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements.

Previous year ligures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to the current year's elassification.
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